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“““““ REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester

Harrisonville, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the
Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District in the County of Gloucester for
the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2011.

As part of our audit, we performed procedures required by the New Jersey Department of Education,
and the findings and results thereof are disclosed on the following pages, as listed in the accompanying
table-of contents.

This report is intended for the information of the South Harrison Township Board of Education's
management and the New Jersey Department of Education. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited. ~

Respectfully submitted,

Nl Tl

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant #86
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

November 29, 2011
‘ -1-
1301 NorTH BROAD STREET - WOODBURY, NEW JERSEY 08096-1293 1252 Kings HiGHwAY - SWEDESBORO, NEW JERSEY 08085
TEeLEPHONE (856) 848-6250 - TELECOPIER (856) 848-0405 TELEPHONE (856) 467-4430 - TELECOPIER (856) 467-9548
Emaiv: ballandbuckley@comcast.net EMAIL: bbs_swedes2@comcast.net
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ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE, AND PERFORMANCE

Scope of Audit

The audit covered the financial transactions of the Board Secretary/School Business A dministrator and
the Treasurer of School Moneys, the activities of the Board of Education, and the records of the various
funds under the auspices of the Board of Education.

Administrative Practices and Procedures

Insurance

Fire insurance coverage was carried in the amounts as detailed on Exhibit J-20, Insurance Schedule
contained in the District's C.A.F.R.

Official’s Bonds (N.J.S.A. 184:17-26, 184:17-32)

Name Position ' Amount
Janine M. Wechter School Business Administrator $ 3,000.00
Flizabeth Allvord Treasurer $ 150,000.00

Financial Planning, Accounting, and Reporting
Examination of Claims

An examination of claims paid during the period under review did not indicate any discrepancies with
- respect to signatures, certification, or supporting documentation.

Payroll Account
The net salaries of all employees of the Board were deposited in the Payroll Account. Employees'
payroll deductions and employer's share of fringe benefits were deposited in the Payroll Agency

Account.

All payrolls were approved by the Superintendent and were certified by the President of the Board and
the Board Secretary/Business Administrator.

Salary withholdings were promptly remitted to the proper agencies, including health benefits
Wlthholdlng due to the general fund. ,

Payrolls were delivered to the Treasurer of School Moneys with a warrant made to his order for the full
amount of each payroll.

The required certification (E-CERT1) of compliance with requirements for income tax on
compensation of administrators (superintendent, assistant superintendents, and business administrator)
to the New Jersey Department of Treasury was filed by the March 15 due date.

Reporting of employee compensation for income tax related purposes complied with federal and state
regulations regarding the compensation which is required to be reported.

Reserve for Encumbrances and Accounts Payable
A review of outstanding issued purchase orders was made as of June 30 for proper classification of

orders as reserve for encumbrances and accounts payable.

D-



District personnel did perform an analysis of outstanding purchase orders at June 30 and prepare the
separate listings of purchase orders comprising the balance sheet account balances for accounts payable
and reserve for encumbrances.

Payments were made with proper authorization for amounts which exceeded the original approved
purchase order amounts.

 Travel

The District obtained written approval of the Executive County Superintendent for any travel event that
exceeded $5,000.00 as required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-5.9.

The District has an approved board travel policy as required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-6.13 and N.J.S.A.
18A:11-12.

Payment for travel by an employee was approved prior to the completion of the travel event.

Classification of Expenditures

The coding of expenditures was tested for proper classification in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-
16.2(f) as part of our test of transactions of randomly selected expenditure items. We also reviewed
the coding of all expenditures included in our compliance and single audit testing procedures. In
addition to randomly selecting a test sample, our sample selection specifically targeted administrative
coding classifications to determine overall reliability and compliance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-8.3. As
a result of the procedures performed, a transaction error rate of 0.00% overall was noted and no
additional procedures were deemed necessary to test the propriety of expenditure classification.

‘ General Classification - Our test of transactlons noted that there were no misclassified
or misbudgeted costs.

Administrative Classification - OQur test of administrative staff salaries found that
salaries were properly charged to the administrative function budget line items.

Board Secretary’s Records

Our review of the financial and accounting records maintained by the Board Secretary disclosed the
following items.

Bids received were summarized in the minutes (N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-21).

Acknowledgment of the Board's receipt of the Board Secretary s and the Treasurer's monthly financial
reports was included in the minutes.

No budgetary line accounts were overexpended during the fiscal year and at June 30.

The Board Secretary filed monthly certifications of the budgetary line items status which are consistent
with the actual budgetary records.

Payments to vendors were not made prior to the receipt of goods.

The capital asset records were updated for the additions and disposals of capital assets made during the
year.

The District made board approved line-item transfers during the year and maintained a monthly transfer
report and year-to-date transfers in a format prescribed by the Commissioner.




The District used an E-Rate consultant during the audit year. This consultant properly filed the
appropriate claim forms on a timely basis for the District. No refunds have been received yet for E-
Rate reimbursements for the school year 2010-11 but are anticipated to be received in 2011-12. Due
to the possibility in a change in the discount rate, an accurate refund receivable could not be
determined. Additionally, the tracking of these refunds is potentially very difficult and time intensive.
Thus, said refund receivables has not been recorded on the District’s books as of June 30, 2011.

Treasurer's Records
The following items were noted during our review of the records of the Treasurer.

The Treasurer’s records were maintained by an employee of the board appointed to the position of
Treasurer of School Moneys.

The Treasurer performed cashreconciliations for the General Operating Account, Payroll Account, and
Payroll Agency Account (N.J.S.A. 18A:17-9).

All cash receipts were promptly deposited (N.J.S.A. 18A:17-34, 18A:17-9.1).
The Treasurer's records were in agreement with the records of the Board Secretary.

- Elementary and Secondary Education Act (E.S.E.A.)/Improving America's Schools Act (1LA.S.A.) as
Reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001

The E.S.E.A/N.C.L.B. financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the
C.A F.R. This section of the C.A.F.R. documents the financial position pertaining to the projects under
Titles I and VI of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended and reauthorized.

A study of compliance for E.S.E.A. indicated no areas of noncompliance and/or questionable costs.

Salary charges were documented each pay period and allocated salary charges for teaching staff members
was supported by employee time sheets.

Due to grantor balances were returned or disposed of in accordance with the grant agreement.
Other Special Federal and/or State Projects

The District's special projects were approved as listed on Schedule A and Schedule B located in the
C.AF.R.

Our audit of the federal and state funds on a test basis, indicated that obligations and expenditures were
incurred during the fiscal year or project period for which the project was approved.

The financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the C.A.F.R. This section
of the C.A.F.R. documents the financial position pertaining to the aforementioned special projects.

The study of compliance for the special projects indicated no areas of noncompliance and/or
questionable costs. '

- ILD.E.A. Part B
Separate accounting was maintained for each approval project.

Grant application approvals and acceptance of grant funds were made by Board resolution and recorded
in the minutes. : .



T.P.A.F. Reimbursement

Our audit procedures included a test of the biweekly reimbursements (electronic, but districts can print
out the DOENET screen for an auditor) filed with the Department of Education for district employees
who are members of the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund. No exceptions were noted.

Nonpublic State Aid ;

Project Completion Reports were finalized and transmitted to the Department by the due date.
School Purchésing Programs | |

Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids

“Effective July 1, 2010 and thereafter, the bid threshold in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-2 and
18A:18A-3(a) are $36,000.00 and $26,000.00, respectively. The law regulating bidding for public
school student transportation contracts under N.J.S.A. 18A:39-3 is currently $17,200.00.

The Board of Education has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any category
will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year. Where question arises as to whether any
contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the Solicitor's opinion should be sought
before a commitment is made. ,

Based on the results of our examination, we did not note any individual payments, contracts, or
agreements made for the performance of any work or goods or services in excess of the statutory:
thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of N.J.S.A.
18A:18A-4, amended.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for "Professional
- Services" per N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-5.

School Food Service

The financial transactions and statistical records of the school food service fund were reviewed. The
financial accounts, meal count records, and eligibility applications were reviewed on a test-check basis.

Cash receipts and bank records were reviewed for timely deposit.
" The District does not utilize a food service management company (FSMC).

Expenditures were Separately recorded as food, labor, and other costs. Vendor invoices were reviewed
and costs verified. Inventory records on food supply items were currently maintained and properly
applied in determining the cost of food and supplies used.

The cash disbursements records reflected expenditures for program related goods and services. The
appropriate revenue and expenditure records were maintained in order to substantiate the non-profit
status of the school food service. Net cash resources did not exceed three months average expenditures.

Time sheets were reviewed and labor costs verified. Payroll records were maintained on all school food
services' employees authorized by the Board of Education. No exceptions were noted.

The number of meals claimed for reimbursement was compared to sales and meal count records. As
part of the claims review process the Edit Check Worksheet was completed Reimbursement claims
were submitted/certified in a tlmely manner.




Applications for free and reduced prlce meals-were reviewed for completeness and accuracy. The
number of free and reduced price meals claimed as served was compared to the number of valid
applications on file, times the number of operating days, on a school by school basis. The free and
reduced price meal and free milk policy was reviewed for uniform administration throughout the school
system. Sites approved to participate in Provisions were examined for compliance with all counting
and claiming requirements. The required verification procedures for free and reduced price
applications were completed and available for review.

Food distribution program commodities were received and a single inventory was maintained on a first-
in, first-out basis. No exceptions were noted.

Exhlblts reflecting Child Nutrition Program operations are included in the section entitled Enterprise
Fund, Section G of the C.A.F.R.

Student Body Activities
During our review of the student activity funds, the following items were noted.
The Board had a policy that clearly established the regulation of student activity funds.

Cash receipts and disbursements were properly recorded and had adequate supporting documentation.
Receipts were deposited on a timely basis.
Application for State School Aid

Our audit procedures included tests of information reported in the October 15, 2010 Application for
State School Aid (A.S.S.A.) for on-roll, private schools for the handicapped, low-income, and bilingual.
We also performed a review of the District's procedures related to its completion. The information on
the A.S.S.A. was compared to the District's workpapers with minor exceptions. The information that
was included on the workpapers was verified without exception. The results of our procedures are
presented in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

The District maintained workpapers on the prescribed state forms or their equivalent.
The District written procedures appear to be adequate for the recording of student enrollment data.
Pupil Transportation
Our audit procedures included a test of on-roll status reported in the 2010-11 District Report of
Transported Resident Students (DRTRS). The information that was included on the DRTRS was
verified to the DRTRS Eligibility Summary Report without exception. The results of our procedures
are presented in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

Our procedures also included a review of transportation related contracts and purchases. Based on our
review, the District complied with proper bidding procedures and award of contracts. No exceptions
were noted in our review of transportation related purchases of goods and services.

Facilities and Capital Assets

Our procedures included a review of the transfer of local funds from the general fund or from the
capital reserve account, and awarding of contracts for eligible facilities construction.

Contracts were not awarded prior to signing of the grant.
Funds were not transferred from the capital reserve account to the capital proj ects fund.

The District did not enter into an energy services contract (ESCO).

B _6_



Follow-Up On Prior Years' Findings
Not Applicable
Acknowledgment

We received the complete cooperation of all the officials of the School District, and we greatly
appreciate the courtesies extended to the members of the audit team.
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EXCESS SURPLUS CALCULATION

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT -
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section 1

A. 2% Calculation of excess surplus

2010-11 Total general fund expenditures per the C.A.F.R., Exhibit C-1

Increased by:
Transfer to food service fund
Transfer from capital outlay to capital projects fund
Transfer from capital reserve to capital projects fund
Decreased by: :
On-behalf TPAF pension and social security
Assets acquired under capital leases

Adjusted 2010-11 general fund expenditures [(B) + (B1's) - (B2's)]
2% of adjusted 2010-11 general fund expenditures [(B3) times .02]

Enter greater of (B4) or $250,000.00
Increased by: allowable adjustment*

Maximum unreserved/undesignated fund balance [(B5) + (K)]

Section 2

Total general fund - fund balances at 6-30-11 (per C.A.F.R.
budgetary comparison schedule C-1)
Decreased by:
Year-end encumbrances
Legally restricted - designated for subsequent year's
expenditures

Legally restricted - excess surplus - designated for subsequent year's

expenditures**
Other restricted fund balances****

Assigned fund balance - unreserved - designated for subsequent year's

expenditures
Total unassigned fund balance [(C)-(C1)-(C2)-(C3)-(C4)-(C5)]

Section 3

Restricted fund balance - excess surplus*** [(U1) - (M)] if negative enter -0-

Recapitulation of excess surplus as of June 30, 2011

Reserved excess surplus - designated for subsequent
year's expenditures**
Reserved excess surplus*** [(E)]

Total [(C3) + (E)}

3,778,254.52

0.00
0.00
0.00

253,088.23
0.00

3,525,166.29

70,503.33

250,000.00

23,677.82

660,163.19

154,787.00

0.00

0.00
23,922.90

110,000.00

(B)

(Bla)
(B1b)
(Blc)

(B2a)
(B2b)

(B3)
(B4)

(B5)
X)

©
(&)
(€2

(C3)
(&)

(C5)

$

273,677.82

371,453.29

97,775.47

0.00

91,775.47

s o154

*This adjustment line (as detailed below) is to be utilized for impact aid, sale and lease-back (refer to the Audit Program
Section II, Chapter 10), extraordinary aid, additional nonpublic school transportation aid, and unbudgeted TPAF wage freeze
grant funding. Refer to the Audit Program Section II, Chapter 10 for restrictions on the inclusion of extraordinary aid and

additional nonpublic school transportation aid.

(™M)

(U1)

E)

(C3)
(E)

8




Detail of allowable adjustments

Impact aid $ 0.00
Sale and lease-back 0.00
Extraordinary aid 16,374.00
Additional nonpublic school transportation aid : 7,012.82
Unbudgeted TPAF wage freeze grant funding 291.00
Total adjustments [(H) + () + (J1) + (02) + (J3)] $ 23,677.82

H)
)

dan
(32)
(33)

X)

**This amount represents the June 30, 2010 excess surplus (C3 above) and must be included in the Audit Summary

Worksheet, Line 10025.

*** Amount must agree to the June 30, 2011 C.A.F.R. and the sum of the two lines must agree to Audit Summary Worksheet,

Line 10024.

**%* Amount for other reserved fund balances must be detailed for each source. Use in the excess surplus calculation of any
legal reserve that is not state mandated or that is not legally imposed by an other type of government, such as the judicial branch
of government, must have departmental approval. District requests should be submitted to the Division of Finance prior to

September 30.

Detail of other restricted fund balance

Statutory restrictions:
Approved unspent separate proposal $ 0.00
Capital outlay for a district with a capital outlay cap waiver 0.00
Sale/lease-back reserve ©0.00
Capital reserve 23,922.90
Maintenance reserve 0.00
Emergency reserve 0.00
' Waiver offset reserve 0.00
Tuition reserve 0.00
Other state/government mandated reserve : 0.00
[Other reserved fund balance not noted above]**** 0.00
Total other restricted fund balance $ 23,922.90

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant #86
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

-10-

(€4




SCHOOL DISTRICT
. OF
SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP

South Harrison Township Board of Education
' Harrisonville, New Jersey

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal 1-4
Organizational Chart 5
Roster of Officials 6
Consultants and Advisors 7
FINANCIAL SECTION
Unqualified Opinions on Basic Financial Statements Accompanied by
Required Supplementary Information and Supplementary Schedule of
Federal and State Awards and Other Supplementary Information - Governmental
Entity - Independent Auditor's Report _ ; : 8-9
Required Supplementary Information - Part 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 10-17
Basic Financial Statements
A. District-Wide Financial Statements
A-1  Statement of Net Assets , ‘ 18
A-2  Statement of Activities ' 19
B. Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds
" B-1 Balance Sheet 20
B-2  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance 21
B-3  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Activities ‘ 22
| Proprietary Funds
'B-4  Statement of Net Assets 23
B-5 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund
Net Assets : 24
B-6  Statement of Cash Flows ‘ 25
Fiduciary Funds
B-7  Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 26
B-8 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets N/A
Notes to the Financial Statements 27-45
Required Supplementary Information - Part I1
C. Budgetary Comparison Schedules
C-1  Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 46-57
C-la  Combining Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund N/A
C-2  Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Revenue Fund 58

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

C-3  Budget to GAAP Reconciliation : 59




FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)

Other Supplementary Information

D.

School Level Schedules

D-1 Combining Balance Sheet

D-2  Blended Resource Fund - Schedule of Expenditures Allocated
by Resource Type - Actual

D-3  Blended Resource Fund - Schedule of Blended Expenditures -
Budget and Actual

Special Revenue Fund
E-1 Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures

Special Revenue Fund - Budgetary Basis
E-2  Demonstrably Effective Program Aid Schedule of Expenditures

- Budgetary Basis
E-3  Early Childhood Program Aid Schedule of Expenditures
- Budgetary Basis
E-4  Distance Learning Network Aid Schedule of Expenditures
- Budgetary Basis
E-5 Instructional Supplement Aid Schedule of Expendltures
- Budgetary Basis
Capital Projects Fund

F-1  Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures

F-2  Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

F-2a Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and
Project Status - Budgetary Basis - Construction of Addition and
and Renovation to South Harrison School

Proprietary Funds
Enterprise Fund
G-1  Statement of Net Assets

G-2  Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets

G-3  Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Fund

G-4 Combining Statement of Net Assets

G-5 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Assets

G-6  Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Page No. _

N/A
N/A
N/A

60
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

61
62

63

64

65
66

N/A

N/A
N/A




Page No.
FINANCIAL SECTION (Concluded)

H. Fiduciary Fund
H-1  Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets ' 67
H-2 Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets N/A
H-3  Student Activity Agency Fund Schedule of Receipts and

Disbursements 68

H-4 Payroll Agency Fund Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements : 69

L - Long-Term Debt | | |
I-1 Schedule of Serial Bonds 70-71
I-2 Schedule of Obligations Under Capital Leases/L.oan Payable 72
I-3  Debt Service Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule 73

- STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends

J-1 Net Assets By Component : 74
J-2 Changes In Net Assets 75-71
J-3 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds ‘ 78
J-4 Changes In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 79
J-5 General Fund Other Local Revenue By Source , 80

Revenue Capacity

J-6 Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 81
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 82
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers ~ : 83
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections : 84
Debt Capacity

J-10 Ratios of Outstanding Debt By Type ' 85
J-11 Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding ‘ 86
J-12 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt , 87
J-13 Legal Debt Margin Information 88

Demographic and Economic Information

J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics 89
J-15 Principal Employers - Salem County 90
Operating Information

J-16 Full-Time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 91
J-17 Operating Statistics ' 92
J-18 School Building Information 93
J-19 Schedule of Allowable Maintenance Expenditures by School Facility 94

J-20 Insurance Schedule 95



Page No.
. SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards (No Material Weaknesses Identified, No Significant

Deficiencies Identified, No Reportable Instances of Noncompliance or Other

Matters Identified) 96-97

Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04
(Unqualified Opinion on Compliance; No Material Weaknesses or Significant

Deficiencies in Internal Control over Compliance Identified) ' 98-99
Schedule A - Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ‘ 100
Schedule B - Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 101
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and

State Financial Assistance - 102-103
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 104-106

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned
Costs as Prepared by Management - 107




Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
of the

South Harrison T ownship Board of Education
Harrisonville, New Jersey

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Prepared by

Janine M. Wechter
School Business Administrator




Introductory Section




SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP
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DAVID W. DATZ ‘ 904 Mullica Hill Road/P.O. Box 112
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: Telephone (856) 769-0855
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November 29, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester

Harrisonville, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

- The comprehensive annual financial report of the South Harrison Township School District (District)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups
of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's
financial activities have been included. :

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
of 1984 as amended in 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits
of State and Local Governments", and the state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04, "Single Audit Policy
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments". Information related to this
single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendatlons are included in the single audit
section of this report.

1. Reporting Entity and Its Services

The South Harrison Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the
District are included in this report. The South Harrison Township Board of Education and all its
schools constitute the District's reporting entity.




1. Reporting Entity and Its Services (Concluded)

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels kindergarten
through sixth grade. These include regular, as well as special education for gifted and handicapped
youngsters. The District completed the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an enrollment of 370 students,
which is 7 students more than the previous year’s enrollment. The following details the changes in the
student enrollment of the District over the last five years.

Average Daily Enrollment

Student Enrollment
Fiscal Year __(As of October 15th) Percent Change
2006-07 312.0 : 8.11%
2007-08 _ 328.0 5.13%
2008-09 337.0 2.74%
2009-10 360.0 6.82%
2010-11 378.0 5.00%

2. Economic Condition and Outlook

The South Harrison Township area is experiencing a period of steady growth. The development taking
place has increased the school’s population steadily over the past few years. New housing
developments have caused the ratables to increase somewhat. Due to the sale of development rights
by many farmers under the farmland preservation act, the District wealth has also increased over the
last several years. The District’s state aid decreased dramatically several years ago; consequently the
tax rate has increased accordingly. This increase in taxes has caused a burden to the lower income
residents, especially those on fixed incomes.

3. Major Initiatives

The South Harrison Township School District participated with the Regional Curriculum Planning
Committee in the development of regional K-12 curricula that reflects the core content standards and
stresses articulation throughout all grade levels. The District hired a shared curriculum writer with the
regional elementary districts.

The technology plan is followed by a technology committee, which is made up of board, parents,
community members, administration, and staff. The District continues to develop a new website for
the District. The District is working hard to better communicate with the community.

The District worked very hard on improving the Ask Test scores. Teachers and staff worked on ideas
and activities that would improve our scores. The District purchased materials to address the staff
activities and ideas. We made AYP which makes very proud.

Finally, with our budget concerns, we have gone to a block schedule for our fourth, fifth, and sixth
graders. Our class sizes have increased, with 31 students in each sixth grade.

4. Internal Accounting Controls

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure
that adequate accounting data-is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. - The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. '




4. Internal Accounting Controls (Concluded)

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. Budgetary Controls

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length
budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservatlons of
fund balance at June 30, 2011.

6. Accounting System and Reports

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in
"Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.

7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of a management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD & A and should be read in connection with it.
The District’s MD & A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

8. Cash Management

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the
Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. Risk Management

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including, but not limited to, general liability, automobile
liability, and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.




10. Other Information
A. Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ball, Buckley and Seher, LLP, Certified Public
Accountants, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of
1984 as amended in 1996 and the related OMB Circular A-133 and state Treasury Circular
Letter 04-04. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and the combining and
individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section
of this report.

12. Acknowledgements

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the South Harrison Township School
Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School
District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,
David W. Datz , Janine M. Wechter
Chief School Administrator School Business Administrator
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Ball
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Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

UNQUALIFIED OPINIONS ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANIED
BY REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester

Harrisonville, New Jersey

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of
the South Harrison Township School District, County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of
Education of the South Harrison Township School District's management. My respons1b1hty is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides areasonable basis
for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township
School District as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, have also issued my report dated November 29,2011
on my consideration of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District's internal
control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.

-8-
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The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 10 through
17 and 46 through 59 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 1
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, 1 did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s basic financial
statements. The accompanying introductory section, and other supplementary information, such as, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical tables are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid respectively, and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all
" material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP }
William H. Buckley, III '

Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 29, 2011
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JUNE 30, 2011
(UNAUDITED)

This section of South Harrison Township School District’s (District) comprehensive annual financial report
presents managements discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the year ending
June 30, 2011. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance
as a whole. Readers should read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial
statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

. Total revenues of $5,149,496.61 were comprised of general revenues in the amount of $4,459,389.86

or 86.60 percent and program specific revenues from charges for services, grants, and contributions
in the amount of $690,106.75 or 13.40 percent.

. The District had $4,639,341.82 in expenses related to governmental activities; only $578,337.57 of
these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants, or contributions.
General revenues (primarily taxes and state aid) of $4,459,389.86 were sufficient to provide for
these programs.

. Among major funds, the General Fund had $3,956,446.89 in revenues and $3,778,254.52 in
expenditures. The General Fund’s balance increased $178,236.85 over 2010. This increase was
anticipated by the Board of Education. The School District utilized General Fund balance to offset
the community property tax assessment for the 2010-2011 school year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the assets and liabilities of the District, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net assets of the District changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.
earned but unused sick leave). -

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 to 19 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

-10-




. Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the district -wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the government’s near-
term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the district -wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
ﬁnancing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special revenue fund, the debt
service fund, and the capital projects fund, each of which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 to 26 of this report.

. Proprietary funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type. The food service fund has

historically operated as an enterprise fund using the same basis of accounting as business-type
activities; therefore, these statements will essentially match the information provided in the
statements for the district as a whole. :

. Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties

outside the governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the District cannot use these funds to finance its operations.

The District uses an agency fund to account for resources held for student activities and groups. The
basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 67 through 69 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full
" understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27 to 45 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 46 to 73 of this report.
The School District as a Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net assets:

-11-
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The dependence upon tax revenues is apparent. The community, as a whole, is the primary support for the
South Harrison Township School District. '

The District’s Funds

The District’s governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All
governmental funds had total revenues of $5,042,528.71 and expenditures of $4,864,291.33. Thenet change
in fund balance was most significant in the general fund due to the use of $200,000.00 of fund balance for
2011 property tax relief. The tax revenues for payment of principal and interest on district debt flowed to
the District’s debt service fund in July 2010 and January 2011.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund.

During the course of fiscal 2011 the School District amended its General Fund budget numerous times.
Generally these amendments are a reallocation of resources to facilitate changes in spending priorities in the
district. The district uses a school-based budgeting system designed to tightly control the total school budget
but provide the flexibility for location management.

For the General Fund, the final budget basis revenue was $3,935,674.89 — an amount very close to the.
original budget estimate and the final budget basis expendltures was $3,778,254.52 — a decrease of
approximately 3.06% or $119,226.48. ,

The district’s ending unobligated cash balance was $504,332.47.
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Current Financial Issues and Concerns

The South Harrison Township School District is primarily a residential community, with very few
commercial ratables; thus the financial burden is focused on homeowners. A successful bond referendum
was held in September 2006 to address the student growth we are experiencing. The new addition opened
in September 2008.

In conclusion, the South Harrison Township School District has committed itself to academic and financial
excellence for many years. In addition, the School District’s system for financial planning, budgeting, and
internal financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal
management to meet the challenges of the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the South Harrison Township School
District’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to Janine M. Wechter, School Business Administrator, South Harrison Township School District, 904
Mullica Hill Road, Harrisonville, NJ 08039 or by e-mail at wechterj@southharrison.k12.nj.us.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A-1

Statement of Net Assets
June 30,2011
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 504,33247 § (2,768.53) §  501,563.94
Receivables, net ' 58,973.41 0.00 58,973.41
Inventory 0.00 11,910.70 11,910.70
Deferred asset: :
Bond issuance costs 114,061.34 0.00 14,061.34
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 51,482.24 0.00 51,482.24
Capital assets, net 15,158,395.01 70,008.00 15,228,403.01
o Total assets 15,787,244 .47 79,150.17 15,866,394.64
LIABILITIES:
Accrued interest 240,934.34 0.00 240,934.34
Accounts payable 22,296.07 11,500.30 33,796.37
Retained percentage due contractor 20,000.00 10.00 20,000.00
Deposits payable 600.00 0.00 600.00
~ Deferred revenue 0.00 10,566.91 10,566.91
- Noncurrent liabilities: -
Due within one year 402,217.69 0.00 402,217.69
Due beyond one year 12,401,310.46 0.00 12,401,310.46
Total liabilities 13,087,358.56 22,067.21 13,109,425.77
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt ‘ 2,427,658.28 70,008.00 2,497,666.28
Restricted for:
Capital projects 31,436.80 0.00 31,436.80
Debt service 0.96 0.00 0.96
Unrestricted 240,789.87 (12,925.04) 227,864.83
Total net assets 2,699.88591 § 57,082.96 § 2,756,968.87

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-2

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy $ 262542200 § 000 § 0.00 $ 751,735.00 $ 3,377,157.00
Tuition 5,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,800.00
Interest earned on capital reserve funds 227.76 0.00 . 0.00 - 0.00 227.76
Miscellaneous 28,152.08 2,500.00 44.48 0.00 30,696.56
Total local sources 2,659,601.84 2,500.00 4448 751,735.00 3,413,881.32
* State sources 1,296,845.05 0.00 0.00 177,750.00 1,474,595.05
Federal sources 0.00 154,052.34 0.00 0.00 154,052.34
Total revenues 3,956,446.89 156,552.34 44.48 929,485.00 5,042,528.71
EXPENDITURES:
Current: v
Regular instruction 1,183,256.37 144,168.34 0.00 0.00 1,327,424.71
Special education instruction 265,928.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 265,928.05
Other special instruction 69,310.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 69,310.26
Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition E 149,851.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 149,851.00
Student and instruction related services 381,171.02 1,494.00 0.00 0.00 382,665.02
School administrative services 1,000.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.06
Other administrative services 376,236.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 376,236.76
Plant operations and maintenance 391,778.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 - 391,778.70
Pupil transportation 327,052.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 327,052.12
Unallocated benefits 612,238.18 1,843.00 0.00 0.00 614,081.18
Debt service: ‘ .
Principal ] 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 385,592.11 385,592.11
Interest and other charges : 0.00 0.00 0.00 543,892.36 543,892.36
Capital outlay 20,432.00 9,047.00 0.00 0.00 29,479.00
Total expenditures 3,778,254.52 156,552.34 0.00 929,484.47 4,864,291.33
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures : 178,192.37 0.00 44.48 0.53 178,237.38
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): .
Transfers (out) in 44.48 0.00 (44.48) 0.00 0.00
Total other financing sources (uses) 44.48 0.00 (44.48) 0.00 ) 0.00
Net change in fund balances 178,236.85 0.00 , 0.00 0.53 178,237.38
Fund balance - July 1 386,140.34 0.00 7,513.90 0.43 393,654.67

Fundbalance;June30 : $ 56437719 § 000 § 7,513.90 § 096 % 571,892.05
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: EXHIBIT B-3
SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds
(from B-2) : $ 178,237.38

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense ‘ $ (187,279.58)
Capital outlays 22,871.00
- Disposals o 5,417.59 (158,990.99)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets
and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Bond principal | 355,000.00
Loan principal _ 30,592.11
Compensated absences : (10,218.87)

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences. ‘ (3,834.92)

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities through interest on long-term
debt. This amount is the net effect of these differences. ‘ 1,625.58

~ In the statement of activities, interest on long-term
debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds,
interest is reported when due. The accrued interest
is an reduction in the reconciliation. 5,975.32

Change in net assets of govemmenfal activities $ 398,385.61
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EXHIBIT B-7

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011
Agency
Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,320.16
Total assets  $ 53,320.16
LIABILITIES: , _
Payable to district ' - $ 2,396.66
Payroll deductions and withholdings : 3,480.42
Due to student groups 47,443.08
Total liabilities $ 53,320.16
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of South Harrison Township School District .
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)is the accepted

- standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The South Harrison Township School District is a Type Il district located in the County of Gloucester,
State of New Jersey. As a Type II district, the District functions independently through a Board of
Education. The Board is comprised of 9 members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the
District is to educate students in grades K - 6 The District had an approximate enrollment at June 30,
2011 of 370 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name), the District holds
the corporate power of the organization, the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's
board, the District is able to impose its will on the organization, the organization has the potential to
impose a financial benefit/burden on the District, and there is a fiscal dependency by the organization
on the District.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to
ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund
~accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds or
account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for the resources. The operations
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in turn is divided into separate
“fund types” as follows:

Governmental Funds

‘General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified
in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted capital
outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles, as they pertain to governmental entities,
state that the general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid,
district taxes, and appropriated fund balance. - Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of
or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to current expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from state and federal government (other than major capital projects, debt service, or the
enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for spec1ﬁed
purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically
authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election. :

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acqulsmon
construction, and improvement programs.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Fund Accounting (Concluded)
Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial position, and
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in
the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the District.

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District is that the
costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the
District has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes. .

The District's enterprise funds are comprised of the food service fund and the ceramics/sculpture
classes. ‘

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. Thismeans that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with their
activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against
their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprictary fund balance sheets.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment - 12 years
Light trucks and vehicles - 4 years
Heavy trucks and vehicles - 6 years

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or
other funds.

Expendable Trust Fund - An expendable trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same
manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Expendable trust funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may
be spent. Expendable trust funds include the unemployment compensation insurance fund.

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf

of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student activities funds.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when the are collectible within the .
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, tuition, state equalizations monies, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at the
annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control
1s established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by school board resolution at any time during the
fiscal year. The Board of Education did not make any material supplemental budgetary appropriations
during the fiscal year. .

- Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated revenue
recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary 1ntegrat10n in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure
of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the apphcable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances
at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related
to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made
at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by
the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased at stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A.17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks
(both state and national banks), and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public
depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily
balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other pubhc depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

H. Accrued Salaries and Wages

Certain District employees, who provide services to the District over the ten-month academic year,
have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve-month year. New Jersey
statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate bank account. As
of June 30, 2011, the amount earned by these employees was disbursed to the employees own
individual institutional accounts.

I. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2010-11 and 2009-10 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Inventories in the proprietary funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in-
first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments made to vendors
- for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011.

K. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for
goods and services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

L. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired within an original cost of $2,000.00 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of
‘the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities - Activities
Land improvements 10-20 years N/A
Buildings and improvements 10-50 years N/A
Furniture and equipment 5-20 years , 12 years
Vehicles 5-10 years 4-6 years

M. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services
already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District
and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences
that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
District and its employees, are recorded for in the period in which such services are rendered or in
which such events take place.

N. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned.
O. Long-Term Obligations

Long—tenn debt is recorded on the district-wide statement as due within one year and due beyond one
year.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

P. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated deprecation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net
. assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, -
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purchases for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Q. Fund Balance

The School District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District’s classifications, and policies for
determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not
in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as
inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted

The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes.
Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (1) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2)
‘imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed

- The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes -
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District’s highest level of decision-
making authority, which, for the School District, is the Board of Education. Such formal action consists -
of an affirmative vote by the Board of Education, memorialized by the adoption of a resolution. Once
committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Education removes, or
changes, the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) it employed to prev1ously
commit those amounts.

Assigned
The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District’s

intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by
the Board of Educatlon
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concluded)‘
Q. Fund Balance (Concluded)

Unassigned

The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the general fund. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the
only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances
are available, it is the policy of the School District to spend restricted fund balance first. Moreover,

when an expendlture is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District to spend fund balances if appropriate,

in the following order: commltted assigned, then unassigned.

R. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certainreported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

S. Component Units

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, provides guidance that all entities associated
with a primary government are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the
financial reporting entity. A primary government is financially accountable not only for the
~ organizations that make up its legal entity, but also for legally separate organizations that meet the
criteria established by GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. Based on the aforementioned criteria, the School
District has no component units. .

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the School District’s deposits might
not be recovered. Although the School District does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit
risk, N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). Under the Act, the first $250,000.00 of governmental deposits in each insured depository
is protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School
District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does not
protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings, athletic and student activity funds, or funds
that may pass to the School District relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are
shown as uninsured and uncollateralized in the schedule below.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Concluded)

As of June 30, 2011, the District's bank balances of $607,656.69 were exposed to custodial credit risk
as follows:

Insurance $ 250,000.00
Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by

pledging financial institutions 357.656.69
| $  607.656.69

- New Jersey ARM

During the fiscal year, the School District participated in the New Jersey ARM. The Fund is governed
by regulations of the State Investment Council, who prescribe standards designed to insure the quality
of investments in order to minimize risk to the Fund’s participants. Deposits with the New Jersey ARM
are not subject to custodial credit risk as defined above. At June 30, 2011, the School District’s
deposits with the New Jersey ARM were $26,318.64.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Board of Education by inclusion of $100.00 on

September 26, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent

fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included
in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District approved
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the excess approval of the
voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of
the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)
7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

- Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 : $ 23,695.14
Interest earnings: _

2010-11 _ 227.76

Ending balance, June 30, 2011 $ 23,922.90

-35-




SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2011 consisted of accounts (fees) and intergovernmental grants. All
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of state programs and the current
fiscal year guarantee of federal funds. Accounts receivable as of fiscal year-end for the School District’s
individual major and fiduciary funds, in the aggregate are as follows:

Special
" General Revenue
Fund Fund Total
State $ 2367782 $ - $ 23,677.82
Federal - 21.433.03 21.433.03
Total A ' | $ 23.677.828% 21.433.03 § 45,110.85
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
A. Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through referendums.
All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by
the District are general obligation bonds.

On February 15, 2003, the School District issued $427,000.00 in general obligation bonds at 3.50% for
a school renovation project. The final maturity of the bonds is 2013. Also on February 15, 2003, the
School District issued $1,306,000.00 in general obligation bonds at 3.50% for school refunding bonds.
The final maturity of the bonds is 2015. On December 20, 2005, the School District issued
$9,801,000.00 in general obligation bonds for the construction of additions and renovations to South
Harrison Schools. The bonds carry interest rates ranging from 4.125% to 4.250% and mature in 2031.
On September 15, 2006, the School District issued $2,871,000.00 in general obligation bonds for the
continuation of the construction of additions and renovations to South Harrison Schools. The bonds
carry interest rates ranging from 4.30% to 4.35% and mature in 2031.

On July 15, 1994, the School District received a $581,250.00 Economic Development Authority loan
at 1.50% for the school construction project. The final maturity of the loan is in 2013.

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal Interest Total

Year ending June 30,
2012 $ 400,592.11 $§ 529,773.45 § 930,365.56
2013 415,592.11 515,067.07 930,659.18
2014 435,592.02 499,724 .44 935,316.46
2015 453,000.00 483,505.00 936,505.00
2016 470,000.00 465,470.00 935,470.00
2017-2021 2,730,000.00 2,012,928.75 4,742,928.75
2022-2026 3,445,000.00 1,386,133.75 4,831,133.75
2027-2031 4.,375.000.00 578.480.00 _ 4.953.480.00
: 12,724,776.24 6,471,082.46 -19,195,858.70

Unamortized

premium 5.960.49 -. 5.960.49

$12.730.736.73 $6.471.082.46 $19.201.819.19

B; Bonds Authorized But Not Issued
As of June 30, 20 1‘1, the District had no authorized but not issued bonds.
C. Interest Expense

No interest expense was capitalized during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. Interest expense
totaling $543,892.36 was paid by the debt service fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

D. Capital Leases Payable
As of June 30, 2011, the District had no capital leases payable.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 6 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT (Concluded)
E. Temporary Notes Payable
As of June 30, 2011, the District had no temporary notes payablé.
F. Compensated Absences |

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees’ salaries are paid.

NOTE 7 - OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2011, the School District had operating lease agreements in effect for copy machines.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 } : Amount
2012 | $  11,833.56
2013 3.495.50
Total future minimum lease payments $ 15.329.06

Lease payments under operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $12,900.36.

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS
Description of Plans

Substantially all of the School District’s employees participate in one of the following pension plans
which have been established by state statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pensions and Benefits (Division): the Teachers® Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP).

The TPAF and PERS are defined benefit pension plans while the DCRP is a defined contribution
pension plan. Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration.
The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That
report may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, Post
Office Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost-sharing contributory defined benefit pension plan
which was established on January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66.  The TPAF
provides retirement, death and dlsablhty and medical benefits to qualified members. Vestmg and
benefit prov151ons are established by N.J.S.A. 18A:66.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual
covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions
in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, statute also

| - requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the
School District and all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability
contribution by the School District has been required over the several preceding fiscal years.

- Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which was established on January 1, 1955. The PERS provides retirement, death and disability,
and medical benefits to certain qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by
N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43:3B. .

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual
covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions
in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, statute also
requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.

The School District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability.

The School District’s contributions to the PERS, equal to the required contribution for each fiscal year,
~ were as follows: ‘

, Normal Accrued Total Paid By
Fiscal Year Contribution Liability Liability District
2011 $ 1232400 $ 16,406.00 $ 28,730.00 $ 28,730.00
2010 8,866.00 8.651.00 17,517.00 17,517.00
2009 Not Available

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution
pension plan which was established on July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L.. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89,
P.L. 2008 and Chapter 1, P.L. 2010. The Defined Contribution Retirement Program Board oversees
the DCRP, which is administered for the Divisions of Pensions and Benefits by Prudential Financial.
The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution
retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions
are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5% of
their annual covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary
reductions in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however,
statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.
In addition, to the employee contributions, the School District’s contribution amounts for each pay
. period are transmitted to Prudential Financial not later than the fifth business day after the date on
which the employee is paid for that pay period.
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- NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Concluded)

The School District’s contributions to the DCRP were as follows:

Total Paid By
Fiscal Year ‘ Liability District
2011 $ 951.10 § 951.10
2010 - -
2009 - -

NOTE 9 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c. 6 required TPAF and PERS, respectively, to fund post-retirement
medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service
or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2207, c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and repayment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State
employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288 retirees eligible
for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the
State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c. 62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from
a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c. 126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 beneﬁts
for 14,050 eligible retlred members in fiscal year 2010.

NOTE 10 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2011, the School District has recognized as revenues and expenditures on-
behalfpayments made by the State for normal costs and post-retirement costs related to TPAF. The amounts
recognized as revenues and expenditures for normal costs and post-retirement costs were $5,906.00 and
$125,445.00, respectively. :

NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accountmg Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's
personnel policies. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation.
Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee after four years
of service. .
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Concluded)

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than
one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due
in more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2011, no liability existed for compensated
absences in the proprietary fund types.

NOTE 12 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The plans, which are administered by the entities
listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred
under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Lincoln Investments
Travelers

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

- The District 1s exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability, and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical
Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District participates in the Gloucester, Cumberland, Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund
(GCSSDIJIF), public entity risk pool. Coverage under this joint plan offers workers' compensation,
boiler and machinery, automobile liability, general liability, property, crime and school board legal
liability coverage. The District is assessed for the contributions for those funds and is responsible for
any reserve deficiencies. No contingency provision has been made in these financial statements as no
deficiencies occurred as of June 30, 2011 for the joint insurance pool. As of December 31, 2010, the
fund had a projected surplus of $1,671,064.00 of which $18,184.00 is the District's share.

NOTE 14 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances exist at June 30, 2011:

Interfund Interfund
Fund ; Receivable Payable
General fund $ 33,720.82 $ -
Special revenue fund - 19,813.78
Capital projects fund - 44.48
Enterprise fund - 11,500.30
Agency fund - 2.362.26

3. $ 3372082 $  33.720.82




SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 |
NOTE 15 - INVENTORY

Inventory in the food service fund at June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Food $ 1,024.46
Supplies 6,251.19
Commodities 4L635_.05

$ 11.910.70

The value of federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit
Law of 1984) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the date of
purchase and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the financial statements.

NOTE 16 - FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

The School District has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:
Nonspendable

The School District does not have any nonspendable funds.

Spendable

The School District has classified the spendable fund balances as Restricted, Assi gned, and Unassigned and
considered each to have been spent when expenditures are incurred. The School District currently has no
funds classified as Committed.

Restricted

Capital reserve - As of June 30, 2011, the balance in the capital reserve account is
$23,922.90 which is restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in
the School District’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan.

Excess surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the designation of
restricted fund balance - excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the
New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to restrict general fund balance at the fiscal year end
of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance as of June 30, 2011 is
$97,775.47. :

Capital project fund - On December 20, 2005 and September 15, 2006, the School District
issued a total of $12,672,000.00 of general obligation bonds pursuant to: (i) Chapter 24 of
Title 18A of the New Jersey statutes, as amended and supplemented (“School Bond Law”)
and (i) a resolution adopted by the Board. The Bonds were authorized by a proposal
adopted by the Board and approved by the voters of the School District. The bond issuance
was approved by the voters for the construction of additions and renovations to the South
Harrison Schools. As of June 30, 2011, the restricted fund balance amount was $7,513.90.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
NOTE 16 - FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED (Concluded)
Assigned
Designated by the Board of Education for subsequent year’s expenditures - The School
District has appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2012 $110,000.00 of general fund balance at June 30, 2011.
Other purposes - As of June 30, 2011, the School District had $154,787.00 of
encumbrances outstanding for purchase orders and contracts signed by the School
District, but not completed, as of the close of the fiscal year.
Unassigned
This the remainder of the School District’s equity in the governmental fund types. The
total balance is $177,892.78 as of June 30, 2011. This is comprised of $177,891.82 in
the general fund and $0.96 in the debt service fund. '
NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through November 29, 201 1, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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Notes To The Required Supplementary Information



EXHIBIT C-3

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Note To Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note A - Explanation of differences between budgetary
inflows and outflows and GAAP revenues and expenditures

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue” from the
budgetary comparison schedule $ 3,935,674.89 $ 156,552.34

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP
in that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures
and the related revenue is recognized 0.00 0.00

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements: .
School year 2010-11 v (95,786.00) 0.00
School year 2009-10 116,558.00 0.00

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental »
funds ' : $ 3,956,446.89 3§ 156,552.34

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule $ 3,778,254.52 % 156,552.34

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are
received for financial reporting purposes ‘ ‘ 0.00 0.00

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds $ 3,778,254.52  $ 156,552.34
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
' Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Interest earned on investments $

EXHIBIT F-2

44.48

Total revenues and other financing sources

44.48

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfer to general fund - interest earnings

44.48

Total expenditures and other financing uses

44.48

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

0.00

7,513.90

Fund balance - ending , $

7,513.90
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~ SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents -

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Interfund accounts payable
Due to student groups

EXHIBIT H-1

Fiduciary Fund
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2011
Agency
Student
Activity Payroll Total
$  47443.08 $ 5,877.08 53,320.16
$ 4744308 § 5,877.08 53,320.16
$ 000 $ - 3,514.82 3,514.82
0.00 2,362.26 2,362.26
47,443.08 0.00 47,443.08
$ 47443.08 $ 5,877.08 53,320.16

Total liabilities
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Statistical Section

Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
District’s financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year. The District implemented GASB Statement 34 in
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003; schedules presenting district-wide information include information
beginning in that year.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

EXHIBIT J-8

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor.

2011 2002
Percentage Percentage
Of Total Of Total
Taxable District Net Taxable District Net
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Value Value Value
Samuel and Colleen Sorbello $  5,044,300.00 1.26% §$§ 2,127,749.00 “1.43%
Fred and Cheryl-Ann Sarbello 3,580,300.00 0.89% 0.00 0.00%
C & F Family Limited Partnership 3,394,800.00 0.85% 0.00 0.00%
Samuel Sorbello 2,170,500.00 0.54% 0.00 0.00%
Robert J. Pacilli Investment, Inc. 2,100,000.00 0.52% 0.00 0.00%
Russell and Judith Marino 1,962,100.00 0.49% 0.00 0.00%
American Tower Asset Sub, LLC 1,897,200.00 0.47% 0.00 0.00%
Gres & Kaluzny Land Development 1,600,200.00 0.40% 0.00 0.00%
Bruce Paparone Communities, Inc. 1,396,700.00 0.35% 0.00 0.00%
‘Carmen A. Malignaggi 1,384,600.00 0.35% _ 0.00 0.00%
Paxon Communications 0.00 0.00% 1,006,100.00 0.67%
HFM Properties 0.00 0.00% 685,700.00 0.46%
James Mallon 0.00 0.00% 525,900.00 © 0.35%
W. Kirk Horner 0.00 0.00% 524,300.00 0.35%
Russell Lalena 0.00 0.00% 475,600.00 0.32%
Eugene Willets 0.00 0.00% 437,700.00 - 0.29%
Harrison Mobile Home Park 0.00 0.00% 433,000.00 0.29%
Barbara Thomas 0.00 0.00% 428,000.00 0.29%
Joseph Lario - 0.00 0.00% 416,800.00 0.28%
Total $ 24,530,700.00 6.12% $ 7,060,849.00 4.73%

-83-




SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DIS'i‘RICT

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected Within The Fiscal Year

EXHIBIT J-9

Of the Levy* ‘
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied For Current Percentage Collections In
June 30 The Fiscal Year Amount Of Levy Subsequent Year
2011 $ 3,377,157.00 3,377,157.00 100.00% $ 0.00
2010 3,228,467.00 3,228,467.00 100.00% >0.00
2009 3,070,610.00 3,070,61 b.OO 100.00% 0.00
2008 2,869,247.00 2,869,247.00 100.00% 0.00
2007 2,266,550.00 2,266,550.00 100.00% 0.00
2006 2,138,849.00 2,138,849.00 100.00% 0.00
2005 1,989,488.00 1,989,488.00 100.00% 0.00
2004 1,824,293.00 1,824,293.00 100.00% 0.00
2003 1,667,295.00 1,667,295.00 100.00% 0.00
2002 1,537,254.00 1,537,254.00 100.00% 0.00

Source: District records including the certificate and report of school taxes (A4F Form).

*School taxes are collected by the municipal tax collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality
is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or
~certified prior to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT J-11

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage Of
Fiscal Year Net General Actual Taxable
Ended General Obligation Bonded Debt Value Of
June 30 Bonds Outstanding Property* Per Capita**
2011 $ 12,633,000.00 $ 12,633,000.00 5.49% 0
2010 12,988,000.00 12,988,000.00 5.83% 4,071
2009 13,328,000.00 13,328,000.00 6.30% 4,178
200.8 13,640,000.00 13,640,000.00 6.87% 4,347
2007 1 3,900,000.00 13,900,000.00 7.35% 4,528
2006 11,214,000.00 11,214,000.00 | .6.29% 3,794
2005 ©1,558,000.00 1,558,000.00 0.93% 542
2004 1,68 8,‘000.00 1,688,000.00 1.08% 594
2003 1,813,000.00 1,813,000.00 1.21% 668
2002 1,360,000.00 1,360,000.00 0.94% | 513

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

*See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

**Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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EXHIBIT J-12

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of December 31,2010

Estimated
Estimated Share Of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding , Applicable* Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes: : '

Municipality $ 0.00 100.00% $ : 0.00
County general obligation debt 308,779,932.21 1.33% 4,112,791.51
Regional high school district 29,798,600.00 13.20% 3,932,721.23
Subtotal - overlapping debt 8,045,512.74
District's direct debt ' 13,079,776.24
Total direct and overlapping debt | $  21,125,288.98

Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Gloucester
County Board of Taxation.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the municipality. This process recognizes
that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden
borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

*For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of
another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the District's boundaries and dividing it by each
unit's outstanding debt.
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EXHIBIT J-14

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
' - Demographic and Economic Statistics '
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita Unemployment

Year Population*  Personal Income**  Personal Income*** Rate****

2010 Not Available $ Not Available $ Not Available ' 7.50%
2009 3,190  126,295,290.00 39,591.00 7.00%
2008 3,138~ 123,649,752.00 - 39,404.00 '4.70%
2007 3,070 115,904,780.00 37,754.00 3.60%
2006 . 2,956 107,601,356.00 36,401.00 4.00%
2005 2,876 98,856,748.00 34,373.00 3.70%
2004 | 2,842 93,467,696.00 32,888.00 3.70%
2003 2,715 85,025,655.00 - 31,317.00 | 4.00%
2002 | 2,651 81,454,626.00 30,726.00 13.90%
2061 | 2,534 76,263,264.00 30,096.00 3.00%

*Population information provided by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

**Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal
income presented.

***Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 census published by
the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis. '

***+*Unemployment data provided by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce
Development.
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EXHIBIT J-15

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2011 2002
Percentage Percentage
Of Total Of Total
Municipal Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Underwood Memorial Hospital 1,825 0.00% N/A N/A
‘Washington Township School District 1,648 0.00% N/A N/A
County of Gloucester 1,500 0.00% N/A N/A
Rowan University 1,300 0.00% N/A N/A
Kennedy Memorial Hospital 1,200 0.00% N/A - N/A
‘Missa Bay, L.L.C. 950 0.00% ‘N/A N/A
Monroe Township School District 741 0.00% - N/A - N/A
U.S. Foodservices 725 0.00% N/A N/A
DGI Services 600 0.00% N/A N/A
Delaware Valley Wholesale Florist 500 0.00% N/A N/A
Total 10,989 - 0.000% 0 0.000%

Source: Gloucester County Department of Economic Development, Gloucester County School Districts
Note - The information provided is for the County of Gloucester, information at the municipal level is not readily available
N/A - Information not available
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EXHIBIT J-20

SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule

June 30, 2011
Unaudited
GCSSDIJIF
Coverage Self Insured Retention Deductible
School package policy - Gloucester, Cumberland,
Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund*: v
Property - blanket building and contents $ 150,000,000.00 200,000.00 $ 500.00
Property valuation: :
Buildings and contents Replacement Cost N/A N/A
Contractors equipment Actual Cash Value N/A N/A
Automobiles Actual Cash Value N/A N/A
General automobile liability 10,000,000.00 150,000.00 None
Boiler and machinery 125,000,000.00 None 1,000.00
Crime . 500,000.00 200,000.00 500.00
Educator's legal liability 10,000,000.00 100,000.00 None
Worker's compensation Statutory 250,000.00 None
None 25,000.00

Pollution legal liability 3,000,000.00

* Excess carriers involved:
Property, crime, general liability, automobile liability, workers'
compensation

General liability and automobile liability
- Workers compensation
Educator's legal liability

Group purchase of primary insurance coverage carrier array:

Boiler and machinery
Pollution legal liability
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SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America,
Axis Surplus Insurance Company
United National Insurance Company
Mazx Specialty Insurance Company
Alliance Global Risk US Insurance Company
RSUI Indemnity Company
SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America

Travelers Insurance Company
ACE American Insurance Co.
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Ball
Buckley &
Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PCPS

THE AICPA ALLIANCE FOR CPA FIRMS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

(No Material Weaknesses Identified, No Significant Deficiencies Identified,
No Reportable Instances of Noncompliance or Other Matters Identified)

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester

Harrisonville, New Jersey

Ihave audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School
District, County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and
have issued my report thereon dated November 29, 2011. I conducted my audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory
Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township
School District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School
District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Board
of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the South Harrison
Township School District’s internal control.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that result in
- more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be

prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s internal
control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the South Harrison
Township School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Board
of Education of the South Harrison Township. School District, the New Jersey State Department of
Education, and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,
‘BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

ol 1

William H. Buckley, IIT
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 29, 2011
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Ball
Buckley &
Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2) PCPS

" THE AICPA ALLIANCE FOR CPA FIRMS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

(Unqualified Opinion on Compliance; No Material Weaknesses
Or Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control Over Compliance Identified)

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
South Harrison Township School District
County of Gloucester

Harrisonville, New Jersey

Compliance

I have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District,
County of Gloucester, State of New Jersey with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey
State Aid/ Grant Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major state programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School
District's major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the
Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District's management. My responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District's
compliance based on my audit.

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey
OMB's Circular Letter 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State
Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04 require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Board of Education
of the South Harrison Township School District's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. I believe that my audit provides
a reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal determination of the Board of
Education of the South Harrison Township School District's compliance with those requirements.
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In my opinion, the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District complied, in all
material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major state
programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Intérnal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to state programs. In planning and performing my audit, I
considered the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program in
order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board of Education of the South
Harrison Township School District’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the Board of Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s ability to
administer a state program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a state program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or
detected by the Board of Educationof the South Harrison Township School District’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a state program will not be prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the South Harrison
Township School District’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. The Board of Education of
the South Harrison Township School District’s responses to the findings identified in my audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. I did not audit the Board of
Education of the South Harrison Township School District’s response and, accordingly, I express no
opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Board
of Education of the South Harrison Township School District, the New Jersey State Department of
Education, and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

y 7 2"

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 29, 2011
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30,2011

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include
the activity of all federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, South Harrison Township
School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements.
All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards
and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules
of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note
1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuantto N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until
the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last
state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $20,772.00 for the
general fund, $0.00 for the special revenue fund, and $0.00 in the capital projects fund. See the Notes
to Required Supplementary Information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified
accrual basis of accounting for the general fund and special revenue fund. Awards and financial
assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

v Federal State Total

General fund $ - $1,296,845.05 $ 1,296,845.05
Special revenue fund 154,052.34 - 154,052.34
Debt service fund - 177,750.00 177,750.00
Food service fund 20.373.28 1.030.84 21.404.12

Total awards and '
financial assistance $ 174.425.62 $ 1.475.625.89 $ 1.650.051.51
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS
. AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.

NOTE 5 - OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. The amount reported as TPAF pension
contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the year ended June

30, 2011. TPAF social security contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the
employer s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified Opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Reportable condition(s) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards - No Federal Single Audit Required

Internal Control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes no

2) Reportable condition(s) identified? yes none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133
(section .510(a))? : : yes no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs?

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes no
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2011

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Concluded)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Intei’nai Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Reportable condition(s) identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-04?

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Numbers(s)

11-495-034-5120-078

300,000.00
X yes no
Unqualified Opinion

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

Name of State Program

Equalization aid

N/A

11-495-034-5120-089

Special education categorical aid
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Section II - Financial Statement F indings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations
of provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which
Government Auditing Standards requires reporting in a Circular A-133 audit. See paragraphs 13.15
and 13.35. '
Finding 11-0
No Current Year Findings.

Section 1II - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies audit findings to be reported by Section .510(a) of Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04. ,

Federal and State Awards
Finding 11-0

No Current Year Findings or Questioned Costs.
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SOUTH HARRISON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
JUNE 30, 2011

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the basic financial statements and
federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (Section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey
OMB's Circular Letter 04-04.

Status of Prior Year Findings

Finding 10-0

There were no prior year audit findings.
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